
 
 

NORTHUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
AGENDA 

 
 
Tuesday, 4 February 2020 at 3.00 pm at the Whickham Room - Civic Centre 
 

From the Clerk, Sheena Ramsey 

Item 
 

Business 
 

1.   Membership of the Northumbria Police and Crime Panel  
 
Councillor Mark Swinburn has replaced Councillor Robbie Moore as a 
representative of Northumberland County Council on the Panel. 
 

2.   Apologies  
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
The Panel is asked to approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 14 January 
2020 (attached). 
 

4.   Proposed Precept for 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 32) 
 
Report of the Clerk to the Panel (attached). 
 

5.   Date and Time of the Next Meeting  
 
Tuesday, 17 March 2020 at 2.00pm in Gateshead Civic Centre 

 
Contact: Brian Wilson, Tel: 0191 4332145, E mail: brianwilson@gateshead.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:brianwilson@gateshead.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

            
NORTHUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
14 January 2020 

 
PRESENT:   
 
Gateshead Council   Councillors A Douglas and S Hawkins 
    
Newcastle City Council   Councillor C Penny-Evans 
 
North Tyneside Council   Councillors S Graham and J Mole 
 
South Tyneside Council   Councillors A Strike and J Welsh 
 
Sunderland City Council   Councillor D MacKnight 
 
Independent Co-opted Member  Mrs J Guy 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Northumbria 
 
K McGuinness - Police and Crime Commissioner for Northumbria (PCC) 
R Durham  - Chief of Staff 
M Tait   - Chief Finance Officer 
P Godden   - Head of Corporate Development, Northumbria Police 
 
Gateshead Council 
 
S Ramsey  - Clerk to the Panel 
B Wilson   - Democratic Services 
  
APOLOGIES: Councillors K Webster (Newcastle City Council), T Mulvenna (North 

Tyneside Council), R Moore and J Riddle (Northumberland County 
Council) and M Mordey (Sunderland City Council). 

  
30. MINUTES 

 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the last meeting held on 10 September 

2019 be approved as a correct record subject to Minute 24 
being amended as follows: Although there had been an 
increase in the conviction rate, this had reduced to 53% in 
recent months and the force was below the national position of 
63.8%. 

 
 
 
 

        

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

31. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
Further to Minute 23, details seeking applicants for the Independent Members 
positions on the Police and Crime Panel are to be placed in the local press and on 
Constituent Councils’ websites and circulated to relevant partners, organisations 
and individuals who might be interested in applying in the near future. 

 
32. FEEDBACK FROM NATIONAL AND REGIONAL EVENTS 
 

The report of the Conference for Police Fire and Crime Panels and the notes of the 
Annual General Meeting of the National Association of Police Fire and Crime 
Panels held on 19 November 2019 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED – That the information be noted. 

 
33. DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 
 

The PCC’s draft annual report 2018-19 was presented. The Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011 specifies that a PCC must produce an annual report 
on the exercise of their functions in each financial year, including the progress made 
in meeting the priorities in the police and crime plan.  
 
It is the role of the Panel under section 28(4) of the Act to review the annual report 
and make a report or recommendations to the PCC. 
 
The report covers the previous PCC’s last year in post and the current PCC’s views 
on the year ahead. 
 
The PCC’s 2017-21 police and crime plan was launched in April 2017, and the 
priorities were reflected in the annual report.  
 
The annual report will be available on the PCC’s website and hard copies will be 
shared with Panel Members and key stakeholders. 
 
Panel Members made the following suggestion for the annual report:- 

 
Rural and wildlife crime – the partnership working mentioned should be made 
clearer. 

 
RESOLVED - That the PCC be advised that in accordance with section 28(4) 

of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the 
Panel agreed with the format and content of the draft annual 
report 2018/19, subject to the suggestion outlined above. 

 
34. POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER – PROGRESS REPORT/KEY ISSUES IN 

THE NEXT QUARTER 
 
The PCC presented her progress report/key issues in the next quarter to the Panel 
which covered the following:- 
 

 Launching the Violence Reduction Unit 
Police Recruitment 
Police Funding 

Page 4



 

Standing up to Domestic Abuse 
Supporting Victims 
Complaints 
Priorities for the next quarter 
Keeping in contact 
Out and about – groups she has met and visits made 
 
The Panel raised the following issues: 

    
It was asked if there were clear criteria and method for measuring outcomes for the 
Home Office funding for the Violence Reduction Unit project in Northumbria. The 
PCC replied that as the project develops, it is hoped that more detail will become 
available on what is needed to improve peoples’ lives in the area in addition to the 
criteria set by Government. 
 
It was asked if consideration had been given to encourage more women and the 
BAME community to apply to become police officers. The PCC replied that a 
focused approach including a series of events and pre-application assistance had 
been taken and it was important that this is maintained to ensure that the force 
reflects the make up of its area population.  
 
RESOLVED – (i) That the information be noted. 

 
(ii) That an update on the allocation of the supporting 

victims fund be submitted.  
 
35. DELIVERY OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN – JULY – SEPTEMBER 2019: 

TARGETS AND PERFORMANCE 
 
The Panel considered the key performance areas, crime tables at force and local 
authority level and an overview of the findings of Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) relating to the delivery of 
the Police and Crime Plan for July to September 2019. 

 
The Panel raised the following issues:- 
 
The request that percentage figures be included for all the information for the 
putting victims first objective was agreed. 
 
It was commented that the new report format was better and more concise. The 
video made to encourage people if they see something to report it to the police was 
very good and the increase in vehicle crime should be looked at. The PCC replied 
that as part of Operation Cloak, officers in the night time economy looked for people 
showing signs of vulnerability and those who might look to take advantage of this 
vulnerability. The Operation had been well accepted. The increase in vehicle crime 
was to be addressed. 
 
Further details regarding first time entrants to the Criminal Justice System was 
requested. The PCC replied that they were predominantly young males. The 
number of first time entrants is high and this could be used to measure the success 
of the violence reduction programme. Further information will be provided. 
 

Page 5



 

The number of reported domestic abuse incidents has continued to increase but the 
conviction rate is down. The PCC replied that this was mainly due to the delay in 
cases going to Court. She was working with the Local Criminal Justice Board to try 
and address this and the Crown Prosecution Service was to be involved. 
 
In regard to the HMICFRS spotlight report: shining a light on betrayal, it was 
confirmed that the force complied with the national guidance on vetting and the new 
processes introduced had addressed the backlog.  
 
With reference to the PEEL annual inspection recommendation that efficiency 
required improvement, the PCC reported that an action plan had been agreed and 
there was a lot of work underway to address the identified issues. 
 
It was agreed that the report that 100% of emergency calls being answered on 
average within 10 seconds lacks clarity and was to be looked at. 
 
RESOLVED - That the information be noted. 

 
36. COMPLAINTS AGAINST THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER – 

SEPTEMBER TO DECEMBER 2019 
 

In accordance with the agreed procedure, an update report about the complaints 
and purported complaints against the PCC and every conduct matter recorded by 
the Monitoring Officer between September - December 2019 was submitted. No 
complaints against the PCC had been received. 
 
RESOLVED - That the information be noted. 

 
37. BUDGET SETTING PROCESS 2020/21 

 
The PCC reported that she had not received any settlement details or guidance 
from the Government for her to consider her proposed precept for policing in 
Northumbria for 2020/21. The public need to have a properly funded force so that 
the costs are not passed on to the most vulnerable. 
 
The Panel was concerned about the delay as it must review the proposed precept 
and make a report to PCC on it by 8 February 2020. 
 
The Home Office had stated that it was aware of the timescales involved. 
 
It was commented that the funding for policing should not be on an annual basis as 
this makes it difficult to tackle long term policing issues. The PCC was to lobby the 
Policing Minister for change and improvements to the current policing funding 
arrangements.  
 
RESOLVED - That the information be noted. 

 
38. THEMED TOPICS  

 
The following issues have been suggested as possible themed topics for discussion 

 at future Panel meetings: 
 
(a) 101 service, including a Members’ visit to the force communications centre 

Page 6



 

(b) Knife and violent crime 
(c) Mental health, homelessness and begging and their impact on the Police and 

Local Authorities 
(d) Perception of anti-social behaviour in local communities 
(e) Provision of better equipment for police officers 
(f) Hate crime 
(g) Effective partnerships – working with other agencies 
 
RESOLVED - (i) That (a) above be agreed and a Members’ visit to the  

   force communications centre be arranged. 
  

 (ii) That (b) above be agreed as the themed topic for the  
  Panel’s meeting on 17 March 2020. 
 
 (iii) That (c) above be agreed as the themed topic for the  
  Panel’s meeting in June 2020. 
 

39. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

Tuesday, 4 February 2020 at 3.00pm 
 

 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
NORTHUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
PANEL MEETING ON 4 FEBRUARY 2020 
 
SUBJECT - PROPOSED PRECEPT FOR 2020/21 
 
REPORT OF THE CLERK TO THE PANEL 
 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The Panel is asked to consider the Police and Crime Commissioner’s (PCC’s)
 proposed precept for 2020/21. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The PCC has provided the attached report setting out  her proposed precept for 
 policing in Northumbria for 2020/21. 
 
2.2 The Panel must review the proposed precept and make a report to PCC on the 

proposed precept by 8 February 2020. The report may include recommendations, 
including recommendations as to the precept that should be issued for the financial 
year. 

 
 Next steps if there is no veto 
 
2.3 If the Panel decides not to veto the precept then the PCC will: 
 

 have regard to the report referred to in 2.2 above and any recommendations 
made by the Panel; 

 respond to the Panel; 

 publish the response; and  

 issue the proposed precept or a different precept if this is in accordance with 
the Panel’s recommendation 

 
 Next steps if there is a veto 
 
2.4 The Panel can only veto the proposed precept if it has the agreement of at least two 

thirds of the Panel’s members (that is 9 members).  
 

2.5 If the precept is vetoed by the Panel then the PCC cannot issue the precept and by 
15 February 2020 will: 

 

 have regard to the report; 

 respond to the Panel with a revised precept; and  

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 publish the response. 
 

The revised precept must reflect the Panel’s recommendation ie if the Panel states 
that the precept is: 
 

 too high, then the revised precept must be lower; or  

 too low, then the revised precept must be higher. 
 

2.6 By 22 February 2020 the Panel must: 
 

 review the revised precept; 

 make a second report to the PCC, accepting or rejecting the revised precept 
(rejection does not prevent the PCC from issuing the revised precept); 

 make recommendations, including recommendations as to the precept that 
should be issued. 

  
 Failure to report by this date will end the scrutiny process and the PCC may 
 issue the revised precept. 
 
2.7 By 1 March 2020 the PCC shall: 
 

 have regard to the second report, including any recommendations; 

 give the Panel a response to the second report; and 

 publish the response. 
  
2.8 The PCC may now issue the revised precept or a different precept. The different 

precept must still be higher or lower than the vetoed precept as detailed above, 
unless the second report recommends a different level of precept. 

 
3. Recommendation 
 
3.1 The Panel is asked to  
 

(i) consider the PCC’s proposed precept; and  
 
(ii) decide whether it wishes to accept or reject the proposed precept and 

whether it wishes to make any recommendations in its report to the PCC. 

Page 10



 

 

,.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Police and Crime Panel for Northumbria       04 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
Report of Police and Crime Commissioner for Northumbria 

 
Report on Proposed Precept for 2020/21 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 This report sets out my proposed Council Tax Precept for the policing area 

covered by the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) for Northumbria for the 
2020/21 financial year, with a recommendation to agree to the proposal.  I am 
seeking agreement on a 1.99% precept rise.  This I believe is fair on 
households dealing with their own cost issues while at the same time ensuring 
Northumbria Police is well positioned to tackle emerging crime trends using 
additional funds made available in the latest settlement. 

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 Schedule 5 states that, 

“A Police and Crime Commissioner may not issue a precept under section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for a financial year until the end of the 
scrutiny process is reached.”  The first stage of the scrutiny process is that I 
must notify you of the precept I am proposing to issue for the financial year 
2020/21. 

 
2.2 The Council Tax Precept is a source of revenue for policing in Northumbria, the 

following graph shows a comparison of Northumbria’s position to other Force 
areas for the current financial year 2019/20: 

 

 
Page 11



 

 

2.3 As is clear on the graph the Northumbria Band D precept charge of £134.33 is 
the lowest of any PCC in England and Wales.  Band D precept charge is the 
contribution paid toward policing by a homeowner in that category and is the 
common criteria by which information and comparison is based.  It should be 
noted that the majority of properties in the Northumbria area are Band A, i.e. 
the lowest banding for which the precept charge is £89.55.  Currently 19% of 
our core resource funding in 2019/20, is derived from Council Tax.  

 
3. The Budget and Settlement 
  
3.1 In summary, the main elements of the 2020/21 Home Office settlement 

included: 
 

 £700m increase in Government funding to PCCs to support recruitment 
of up to 6,000 additional officers by the end of March 2021: 
 

 £532m paid directly to PCCs through core grant funding to 
support recruitment of up to 6,000 additional officers by the end 
of March 2021. The increase will be paid to all 43 forces and 
allocated in-line with formula funding such that all forces will see 
an increase in their core funding equivalent to 7.5%. 

 

 £168m ring-fenced grant allocated to forces in-line with their 
funding formula allocations, accessed through progression 
against their recruitment targets. 

 

 The precept referendum limits for 2020/21 have been set by Government 
to enable PCCs to raise further funding for local priorities, through an 
increase of up to £10.00 per Band D property. 

 

 Specific grant funding allocated to forces to manage part of the increased 
cost of employer pensions in 2019/20 has been confirmed for one further 
year. 

 
3.2 Northumbria has taken the largest financial cut of all Forces in England and 

Wales through both the 2010 and 2015 Comprehensive Spending Review 
(CSR) periods, as reported by the National Audit Office.  Central Government 
formula funding for policing in Northumbria was reduced by more than 31% in 
real terms between 2010/11 and 2018/19. 

 
3.3 The current financial climate remains a difficult and challenging one.  The last 

10 years have seen unprecedented cuts to the funding provided by the 
Government to Police and Crime Commissioners in England and Wales.  By the 
end of 2019/20 Northumbria will have made £144.3m of cuts and efficiencies to 
manage the reductions imposed by government over that period.   

 
3.4 For a number of years now, the severe restrictions on funding from Central 

Government have been delivered with the continued expectation that the 
shortfall is met locally by tax payers through the precept. 

 
3.5 Local precept income is essential to maintain spending power and preserve the 

high standards of policing that we have in Northumbria. The Council Tax 
Precept raised £52.769m towards the total funding requirement for Northumbria 
in 2019/20.  Residents in Northumbria have provided additional funding to Page 12



 

 

support Northumbria Police year-on-year and that support has been vital to help 
the force deliver the Police and Crime Plan priorities. 

 
3.6 Northumbria have argued for a number of years that the Government settlement 

should deliver the additional funding required by forces to deliver policing 
services to the public and that the responsibility should not simply be pushed 
onto local tax payers. Whilst this settlement appears to go some way towards 
that principle, there remains a lack of clarity over longer term funding certainty 
and the messaging from HM Treasury is that the CSR 2020 is expected to be 
tough and future settlements less favourable. 

 
3.7 The attached report at Appendix 1 sets out the proposed revenue budget and 

capital programme for 2020/21 including my precept proposal, together with a 
review of the current year’s budget position and future funding. 

 
4. Precept Options 
 
4.1 Consideration of the Council Tax Precept has to be taken alongside both the 

overall funding made available to the force and the impact on households of any 
increase.  The Government has proposed precept referendum limits for 2020/21 
that enable PCCs to raise additional funding for local priorities through an 
increase of up to £10.00 for a Band D property.  For residents in Northumbria 
this would equate to a further 7.44% on Council Tax bills for 2020/21. 
 

4.2 The settlement issued by the Government delivers additional core grant funding 
for Northumbria of £16.387m which represents an increase equivalent to 7.5%. 
In addition, ring-fenced funding of £5.175m will be allocated as the force 
progresses against its recruitment target for 2020/21. 

 
4.3 When calculating the overall settlement for policing in 2020/21 the Government 

has assumed that each PCC will raise the precept by the maximum amount of 
£10.00 for a Band D property.  This Government-expected precept rise would 
have meant households in Northumbria experiencing a 7.44% increase in the 
precept for 2020/21. 

 
4.4 I believe that moving the full cost of an adequate police budget increase to the 

local tax payer would be difficult to justify at a time when the Government 
settlement has increased.  Therefore my decision is to propose an increase of 
only 1.99% on the precept. 
 

4.5 The funding available through the precept increase of 1.99% on the tax base 
would provide an additional £1.065m in 2020/21.  It would also increase the 
underlying precept base and provide continued financial benefit in future years. 
For context, an increase of 1.99% equates to £2.67 per year for a Band D 
property, approximately 22p per month.  For a large proportion of the residents 
in Northumbria, those in a Band A property, the actual increase will be 
approximately 15p per month (£1.78 per year). 

 
4.6  On 09 January 2020 I launched a consultation with the public on the precept, 

asking people how much they are prepared to pay to support their police force.  
A press release was issued and featured in several local publications.  The 
consultation was also supported through social media channels.  An invitation to 
complete the on-line survey was also shared with the Office of the Police and 

Page 13



 

 

Crime Commissioner’s contact lists.  These lists included the advisory groups 
and scrutiny panels and other interested stakeholders.   

 
4.7 The online was active from 9 January 2020 until 22 January 2020, in which 

people were asked their view on range of actions.  As the consultation was 
taking place before the Government had announced the funding settlement it 
was agreed that the consultation would include a range of options.  
Respondents were asked their view on a zero council tax rise, an increase of 22 
pence per month for a Band D property (1.99%), an increase of 45 pence per 
month (3.99%), and a 78 pence per month increase (6.99%).  Of the 264 
responses received from the on-line survey 64% were supportive of some form 
of increase to the Council Tax precept. 

 
4.8 During the same period a telephone consultation was carried out by the Public 

Insight team at Northumbria Police. 1,200 households were contacted, 200 in 
each local authority area. In order to ensure a higher success rate in the phone 
calls, just two options were used compared to the four in the online consultation.  
Those taking part were asked if they would support an increase, with options of 
a 22p a month (1.99%) and a 78p (6.99%) increase put to those taking part.  
86% of respondents agreed that they would support a 22p increase per month.  
When asked about a higher amount, 75% of respondents agreed they would 
support a 78p increase for the same purpose.  The responses show that 
Northumbria Police is held in high regard by many residents and they 
appreciate that policing needs more investment.  There continues to be a sense 
of pride in our local policing service and it is clear that people want to ensure 
the services of the police are available if they ever need them. 

 
4.9 Reasons frequently cited by respondents in support of the increase referred to 

wanting to support the police; a desire to see more police on the streets and for 
public safety.  In contrast, those that disagreed to any increase expressed 
sentiments that it should be the responsibility of the Central Government and 
that they felt they were already paying enough council tax. A small proportion of 
respondents also referred to preferring the lower 22 pence increase, due to 
concerns over their pensions and previous council tax increases 

 
4.10 I have considered the options available to me and have taken into 

consideration the consultation feedback.  My primary considerations are to 
ensure the effective delivery of the Police and Crime Plan, protecting 
communities and the most vulnerable, and maintaining the provision of 
neighbourhood based policing services as far as possible and to keep police 
officers 'on the beat'.   Alongside that I have to take in to account the impact on 
residents of any rise in household bills.  I believe it is the right decision to 
recommend an increase in the precept of 1.99% (£2.67 per year for a Band D 
household), to continue to support local policing services in the face of a 
challenging financial situation. 
 

4.11 In deciding on a 22 pence per month increase of 1.99% alongside the increase 
in grant funding, I am confident that the Chief Constable and myself will be in a 
good position to continue to deliver for residents in the Northumbria force area. 

 
4.12 The Chief Constable and I continue to take tough decisions to prioritise 

resources and to ensure that services are reviewed and challenged to 
demonstrate value for money.  We have listened carefully to local residents and 
we will invest the money into policing to recruit additional officers and staff and 

Page 14



 

 

make sure that Northumbria Police has the resources it needs to keep 
communities safe. 

 
4.13 Northumbria Police has a strong track record of delivering against a Police and 

Crime Plan that reflects local needs, and I will shortly be consulting on the next 
four-year plan for our area.  As we prepare for that process to start I am keen to 
hear from residents on what the force’s priorities should be, and how we should 
dedicate increased resources, whilst being cautious that funding settlements 
may be more restrictive in future years. 

 
4.14 I think it is also important to acknowledge that this increase in central 

government funding does not yet undo the impact of ten years of austerity and 
the overall funding reductions Northumbria Police have had to adjust to.  
Indeed, this is only a one-year settlement which does not provide any certainty 
beyond March 2021.  The force may well face further budget pressures in the 
upcoming Comprehensive Spending Review and future settlements are unlikely 
to be as favourable. 

 
5 Proposals 
 
5.1 I propose that the precept is increased by 1.99% which equates to £2.67 per 

year for a Band D property. 
 
5.2 The impact of this decision in 2020/21 will allow for an additional and recurring 

£1.065m contribution to resources. 
 
5.3 This proposal is made in the context of the budget needed to invest in policing 

resources, with essential expenditure to deliver the Police and Crime Plan. 
 
6. Recommendation 
 

The Police and Crime Panel are asked to:  

I. Review the recommended precept proposal. 

II. Make a report to the Commissioner on the proposed precept for the 
forthcoming financial year. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

  
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Proposed Council Tax and Revenue & Capital Budgets 2020/21 

 
1. Summary of Proposed Council Tax and Revenue & Capital Budgets 2020/21: 

 A proposed revenue budget of £299.502m for policing and crime reduction that 
includes: 

 Provision for increases in pay and prices of £9.600m; and budget pressures 
of £2.600m; 

 A net increase of £1.400m in the revenue costs to support capital 
investment; and 

 Budget savings of £3.700m in 2020/21. 

 Delivery of the Northumbria share of the National police officer Uplift target 
by March 2021. 

 Investment of £4.358m in local policing priorities for 2020/21. 

 Initial phasing of investment over the medium term has been set at a level 
which is prudent and sustainable, including a contingency set aside to 
maintain investment over the medium term, which is balanced against the 
risks identified and the level of funding uncertainty beyond March 2021. 

 Capital investment in buildings, vehicles and new technology of £17.261m. 

 Proposed increase of 1.99% on the Council Tax Precept (£2.67 for a Band 
D property) in 2020/21 to raise an additional £1.065m income. 

 
Considerations 
 
2. In preparing the Revenue and Capital Budgets for 2020/21 the following have all been 

considered: 

 The key principles underlying the 4 year MTFS 2020/21 to 2023/24. 

 The level of investment in local policing priorities that is sustainable over the 
medium term balanced with the risk and uncertainty of a 1 year funding 
settlement. 

 The Police Grant settlement for 2020/21 which has provided detail on Home 
Office core grant funding for both revenue and capital, legacy Council Tax 
grants, Special Pension Grant, National police officer Uplift and the referendum 
limits for increases to the Council Tax Precept. 

 The overall financial position of the force including: the likely revenue and 
capital outturn for 2019/20; budget pressures and savings identified for 
2020/21; and the level of reserves available to the PCC.  

 Delivery of the Police and Crime Plan. 

 Risk assessment. 

 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

Page 17



 

 2 

Financial Strategy 
 
3. The 2020/21 budget is part of the four year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  
 
4. The overall financial strategy seeks to deliver the Commissioner’s Police and Crime 

Plan, support the Police 2025 Strategy, the mission, vision and values of Northumbria 
Police and meet the requirements of the National Strategic Policing Requirement. 

 
National Police Finance Settlement  
 
5. The national police grant settlement was published on 22 January 2020. 
  
6. The key headlines from the settlement are: 

 Police Core Grant – Core grant allocations to PCCs to be increased by 
£532m, to support recruitment of up to 6,000 additional officers by the end of 
March 2021. The increase will be paid to all 43 forces and allocated in-line 
with formula funding such that all forces will see an increase in their core 
funding equivalent to 7.5%. 

 No direct inflationary increases have been allocated to core grant funding over 
and above the funding provided for additional officer recruitment. 

 Ring-fenced grant funding of £168m will be allocated to PCCs in-line with 
formula funding allocations and accessed through progression against their 
recruitment targets. 

 Legacy grants relating to Council Tax and freeze grants for 2011/12 and 
2014/15 remain payable. 

 Specific grant funding allocated to forces to manage part of the increased cost 
of employer pensions in 2019/20 has been confirmed for one further year only. 

 Council Tax Referendum Limits - The Government has proposed precept 
referendum limits for 2020/21 that enable PCCs to raise additional funding for 
local priorities through an increase of up to £10.00 for a Band D property.  
However, this increase is subject to confirmation at the final Local Government 
Finance Settlement. 

 Police Capital Funding – Capital grants to PCCs cut / top-sliced by 75% as the 
Government prioritise national schemes and infrastructure. The messaging is 
that PCCs can utilise increases in other grants (revenue) to cover both capital 
and non-capital spend, increasing the impact of capital investment on force 
revenue budgets. 

 Four priority areas to drive efficiency, productivity and effectiveness next year 
including efficiency savings through joint procurement, enhanced productivity 
using technological solutions, achieving best value on police technology 
spending and ensuring forces meet their recruitment targets for 2020/21. 

 PCC allocations for the commissioning of victims’ services have been issued 
to include a 1.84% inflationary increase. 

 In addition, funding for Violence Reduction Units (VRU) has been confirmed 
for one further year only. 

 
 
 

Page 18



 

 3 

Northumbria Settlement 
 

7. Police Grant - The one year settlement announcement confirmed that core grant 
allocations would be increased to support recruitment of up to 6,000 officers by March 
2021.  The Northumbria allocation is £16.387m which represents an increase 
equivalent to 7.5%. 

 
8. Whilst core grant funding has been significantly increased for 2020/21, this funding 

has been provided to support the recruitment of the initial 6,000 officers and provide 
the necessary infrastructure improvements to deliver the full 20,000 national Uplift by 
March 2023.  In addition no direct inflationary increase has been provided over and 
above the funding to support the officer Uplift. 

 
9. The ring-fenced funding allocation for Northumbria is £5.175m and will be allocated 

on a quarterly basis as the force progresses against its recruitment target of 185 
additional officers by March 2021.  Recruitment targets allocated at force level 
beyond 2020/21 are not yet known. 

 
10. The Special Pension Grant of £3.423m allocated in 2019/20 to cover part of the 

increased cost of police officer pensions (£7.700m for Northumbria) has been 
confirmed for one further year only.  No inflationary increase has been made, the 
grant is maintained in flat cash terms.  This remains a significant risk to the medium 
term position and therefore the principle to maintain a Police Pension Scheme 
Funding Reserve is continued.  

 
11. Northumbria will continue to receive legacy grants totaling £8.168m, relating to 

Council Tax and freeze grants for 2011/12 and 2014/15. 
 
12. Capital grant funding allocated by the Government for Northumbria is £0.338m and 

represents less than 2% of the total funding required for capital investment in 
2020/21.  The grant has been cut by almost 75% against the level allocated for 
2019/20. 

 
13. This is a one-year settlement which does not provide any certainty beyond March 

2021. The messaging from HM Treasury is that the Comprehensive Spending Review 
(CSR) 2020 will be tough and future settlements will not be as favourable. 

 
14. Council Tax Precept - The Government has proposed precept referendum limits for 

2020/21 that enable PCCs to raise additional funding for local priorities through an 
increase of up to £10.00 for a Band D property.  For residents in Northumbria this 
would equate to a further 7.44% on Council Tax bills for 2020/21.  However, this 
increase is subject to confirmation at the final Local Government Finance Settlement 
and it is for locally accountable PCCs to take decisions on local precept and explain 
to their electorate how the additional funding will be invested in police services. 

 
Capital Programme 2019/20  
 
15. The Commissioner has a revised capital budget for 2019/20 of £21.829m.  The third 

quarter capital monitoring report outlined a revised capital estimate of £17.004m as at 
31 December 2019.  The reduction in the revised estimate for the year mainly reflects 
changes in the phasing and timing of capital schemes which will roll forward into 
2020/21.  

 
 

Page 19



 

 4 

Capital Programme 2020/21 
  
16. The following table sets out a summary of the capital programme for 2020/21:  

 
17. Key areas to note in the proposed programme are:  
 

 Major and Minor Building Schemes - Estates refurbishment programme 
based on the new operational model requirements, improving wellbeing and 
the 2018 condition surveys; transition and relocation costs associated with 
premises moves and co-location with partner agencies. 

 

 Information Technology - The Force have a number of Improvement 
Schemes to deliver change and efficiency through transformation which 
includes considerable investment in IT systems.  This includes the 
replacement of all core operating systems and the associated hardware and 
network equipment, and future implementation of the National Emergency 
Services Network (ESN) within Northumbria. 

 

 Vehicles and Equipment - A rolling programme of vehicle replacement and 
material programmes for upgrading equipment including body armour 
replacement and body-worn video. 

 
Revenue Budget 2019/20 
 

18. The Commissioner’s Group revenue budget for 2019/20 is £280.082m.  The Quarter 
3 revenue monitoring report shows a projected underspend of £2.868m as at 31 
December 2019.  

 

 

Total        

£000

8,402

4,085

4,774

17,261

2020/21Capital Programme

Major and Minor Building Schemes

Information Technology

Vehicles and Equipment

Total

Approved 

Budget 

2019/20

Projected 

Outturn 

2019/20

Variance 

2019/20

Group Position £m £m £m

Chief Constable 268.581 266.686 (1.895)

Police and Crime Commissioner 2.098 2.098 -  

Capital Financing 9.403 8.430 (0.973)

Net Expenditure 280.082 277.214 (2.868)

Central Government Grant (230.551) (230.551) -  

Council Tax Precept (53.531) (53.531) -  

Central Grant and Precept Total (284.082) (284.082) -  

Appropriations (to) / from reserves (4.000) (6.868) (2.868)

2019/20 Revenue Monitoring - Quarter 3 Position

Page 20



 

 5 

19. The Chief Constable’s revenue budget for 2019/20 is £268.581m.  The forecast 
underspend of £1.895m represents 0.7% of the budget allocated for the year.  The 
underspend is mainly attributed to a one-off saving from the timing and phasing of the 
increase to the workforce funded through last year’s precept increase.  In addition 
there are one-off additional receipts of income associated with the provision of 
training courses and other police services.  This saving will not be used to increase 
general reserves but will be set aside and reinvested to maintain the increase in the 
workforce during 2019/20 alongside the additional investment planned for 2020/21, 
ensuring that this remains sustainable over the medium term. 

 

20. For Capital financing, underspend is attributed to the timing of payments relating to 
the repayment of borrowing and interest.  The capital programme includes a rolling 
programme of significant estates and ICT works.  Repayment of borrowing is based 
on estimates at a point in time, which are monitored and updated quarterly throughout 
the year.  In addition, savings on interest costs have been achieved in-year mainly 
due to a reduction in planned capital spend, new long term borrowing secured at 
preferential rates and borrowing deferred to later in the financial year.  Underspend 
will be set aside in reserves to manage capital expenditure associated with 
implementation of the National Emergency Services Network (ESN) within 
Northumbria.  This supports the prudent approach being taken to overall capital 
financing over the medium term in light of capital grant funding from Government 
being cut by 75% within the settlement for 2020/21. 

 

21. The overall Group forecast represents an underspend of £2.868m.  The underspend 
will be reinvested over the medium term to maintain the increase to the workforce 
during 2019/20 and manage the capital costs associated with implementation of the 
National ESN within Northumbria. 

 

22. The forecast closing position on the general reserve for 2019/20 is £9.7m. 

 
Revenue Budget 2020/21 
 
23. For the financial year 2020/21, the proposed total net revenue budget is £299.502m. 
 
24. The proposed budget includes £9.600m in relation to pay and price increases 

including an estimated 2.5% pay award for officers and staff; provision for police 
officer pay progression under regulations, known contract increases and other 
inflation costs associated with rates, rents, utilities and force contracts. 

 
25. Budget pressures of £2.600m have also been incorporated, which include ICT 

revenue costs associated with capital schemes, IT software licenses and new 
software solutions, known operational budget pressures, and other non-pay 
pressures. 

 
26. Force budget savings of £3.700m have been identified in 2020/21 relating to the 

revaluation of the police staff pension fund (LGPS), officer allowances, other non-pay 
budget areas and income generation. 

 
27. An increase in capital financing costs of £1.400m to support capital investment is 

included which reflects the planned profile of interest costs, investment income and 
the principal repayment of borrowing. The movement reflects the additional revenue 
cost of supporting 2019/20 capital investment through prudential borrowing.  This 
approach is set in the context of a significant cut to Government grant funding for 
capital for 2020/21. 

 

Page 21



 

 6 

28. The 2020/21 settlement sees the Government cut capital grants by 75% in order to 
prioritise national capital schemes and infrastructure with the expectation that 
increases in revenue grants can be used flexibly to cover both capital and non-capital 
spend.  Capital receipts will therefore be used prudently across the MTFS period to 
manage overall capital investment and limit the impact on revenue budgets alongside 
this significant funding cut. 

  
29. The revenue budget 2020/21 includes the costs associated with delivering the 

Northumbria share of the National police officer Uplift of an additional 6,000 officers 
by March 2021. 

 
30. The revenue budget for 2020/21 includes provision for further investment in policing 

priorities of £4.358m.  The force will undertake to prioritise investment options over 
the coming weeks to provide the benefits that maximise policing outcomes for 
Northumbria residents. 

 
31. Under this scenario, part of the funding allocated for 2020/21 will be set aside in 

reserves to ensure that the investment in the Northumbria area will be sustainable 
over the medium term.  This approach will also ensure that funds are available to 
provide the necessary infrastructure improvements to support the future Uplift in 
police officer numbers in 2021/22 and 2022/23.  Given the late announcement by the 
Government of police funding for 2020/21, final decisions regarding the initial level of 
investment and contingency will continue to be considered by the PCC and Chief 
Constable. 

 
Budget Summary – 2020/21  
  
32. A summary of the 2019/20 forecast outturn position and proposed 2020/21 Revenue 

Budget is set out below: 
 

 
 

33. The group budget is held by the Police and Crime Commissioner who provides 
financial resources to the Chief Constable to deliver operational policing.  The PCC 
has a small specific budget for the Commissioners Community Fund and the OPCC 
running costs.  The Capital Financing budget comprises the revenue provision for 
repayment of borrowing, interest costs and investment income. 

 
Council Tax Options  

 
34. The Localism Act 2011 introduced a power for the Secretary of State for Communities 

and Local Government to issue principles that define what should be considered 
excessive Council Tax, including proposed limits.  From 2013 onwards, any PCC that 
wishes to raise its Council Tax above the limits that apply to them will have to hold a 
referendum. 

 

Original 

Estimate 

2019/20

Revised 

Estimate 

2019/20

Projected 

Outturn 

2019/20

Original 

Estimate 

2020/21

Group Revenue Budget £m £m £m £m

Chief Constable 268.581 268.581 266.686 286.657 

Police and Crime Commissioner 2.098 2.098 2.098 2.098 

Capital Financing 9.403 9.403 8.430 10.747 

Net Revenue Expenditure 280.082 280.082 277.214 299.502 

2020/21 Group Budget

Page 22



 

 7 

35. The excessiveness limit for 2020/21 is £10.00 per Band D property.   
 
36. During 2019/20 the Council Tax base in the Northumbria force area increased by an 

average 1.55% to 398,916 (Band D equivalent properties). The increase in the 
Council Tax base will generate additional income of £0.817m for 2020/21. 

 
37. In calculating the overall settlement for policing in 2020/21 the Government has 

proposed enabling each PCC to raise further funding for local priorities through an 
increase of up to £10.00 for a Band D property.  For residents in Northumbria this 
would equate to a further 7.44% on Council Tax bills for 2020/21.  Consideration of 
the Council Tax Precept has to be taken alongside both the overall funding made 
available to the force and the impact on households of any increase. 

 
38. The proposal is to increase the Council Tax precept by 1.99% (£2.67 for a Band D 

property) to raise an additional £1.065m over 2020/21. The Police Commissioner has 
stated this is a rise that is fair on households dealing with their own cost issues while 
at the same time ensuring Northumbria Police is well positioned to tackle emerging 
crime trends alongside additional funds made available in the financial settlement. 

 
39. The anticipated receipts of £54.651m from the precept are included in the MTFS that 

sets out the main assumptions and provides further detail to demonstrate that this 
decision provides affordability over the medium term. 

 
40. In addition, all six billing authorities will pay a collection fund surplus in 2020/21 which 

will deliver a total of £0.938m. 
 
Reserves 
 
41. The Commissioner’s reserves policy is set out in the MTFS and is subject to regular 

review. 
 
42. A full analysis of the Commissioner’s revenue reserves and their planned use in 

2020/21 taking into account the proposals outlined is set out in the following table: 
 

 
 

Revenue Reserves

Estimated at 

31 March 2020

Planned 

Transfer to 

Reserves 

2020/21

Planned use of 

Reserves 

2020/21

Estimated at 

31 March 2021

£m £m £m £m

Earmarked Reserves

Insurance Reserve 3.0 -  -  3.0 

Workforce Management Reserve 1.3 -  -  1.3 

Police Pension Scheme Funding Reserve 3.4 -  -  3.4 

Emergency Services Network (ESN) 

Reserve
3.6 -  -  3.6 

Contingency to Maintain Investment over 

the Medium Term
1.9 8.2 -  10.1 

Innovation Reserve 0.3 -  (0.3) -  

External Funding Reserve 0.3 0.2 (0.1) 0.4 

NERSOU Reserve 0.2 -  (0.2) -  

Total Earmarked Reserves 14.0 8.4 (0.6) 21.8 

General Reserves 9.7 -  -  9.7 

Total Reserves 23.7 8.4 (0.6) 31.5 

Page 23



 

 8 

43. The MTFS sets out the Commissioner’s reserves strategy which is to maintain the 
general reserve at a minimum of 2% of the net revenue budget for the year.  As at 31 
March 2020 the balance is estimated to be £9.7m which equates to 3.2%.   

 
Adequacy of Reserves and Robustness of Budget Estimates 

 
44. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Joint Chief Finance Officer to 

undertake an assessment of the robustness of the budget estimates and the 
adequacy of reserves.   

  
45. The budget and MTFS allows the Commissioner to consider the prudent use of 

reserves in the context of the future spending pressures and risks arising from 
potential changes to the funding formula without having a detrimental effect on 
policing.   

 
46. In assessing the robustness of the budget, the Joint Chief Finance Officer has 

considered the following issues: 

 The general financial standing of the group made up of the OPCC and 
Northumbria Police. 

 The underlying budget assumptions, including an assessment of the estimates 
for pay and price increases. 

 A risk assessment of expenditure and income estimates. 

 The future budget pressures identified in the MTFS. 

 The adequacy of the budget monitoring and financial reporting arrangements. 

 The adequacy of the Commissioner’s governance arrangements and internal 
control system. 

 The adequacy of general reserves to cover any potential financial risks faced 
by the Commissioner. 

 The impact of funding cuts and the uncertainty around future budget 
pressures, CSR 2020 and the levels of grant support beyond 2020/21. 

 

47. At 31 March 2020, the Commissioner’s General Reserve is estimated at £9.7m (3.2% 
of revenue expenditure), in addition to other reserves which are earmarked for 
specific purposes.  In estimating the level of reserves the Joint Chief Finance Officer 
has taken account of known commitments and the financial risks faced by the 
Commissioner which could impact on the level of reserves over the MTFS period. 

 

48.  The Joint Chief Finance Officer confirms that, after taking account of these issues, 
the revenue and capital estimates contained in this report are considered robust and 
that the level of reserves proposed in the review set out earlier is considered 
adequate to cover the financial risks faced by the Commissioner in 2020/21. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 9 

Council Tax Requirement 
 

49. The Localism Act requires the Commissioner to set a Council Tax Requirement.  The 
calculation of the Council Tax Requirement, based on the proposed revenue budget 
and contribution from reserves is set out in the following table: 

 
 
50. The proportion of collection funds’ net surplus due to Northumbria Police from its 

constituent billing authorities is £0.938m for 2020/21 (£0.762m in 2019/20).   
  
51. The notified Council Tax base figure is 398,916 which is an increase of 6,086 over 

the previous year (1.55%). 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
 
52. Regulations came into effect from March 2008 with regard to preparing an Annual 

MRP Statement. MRP is the amount that needs to be set aside to reflect the 
depreciation of capital assets. There are no proposed changes to the method used to 
calculate MRP and the Annual MRP statement for 2020/21 is attached at Annex A. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
53.  Financial implications are considered throughout the report. 
 
Risk Management 
 
54. Associated risks have been considered and recorded as appropriate, set out in 

Annex B 
 
Recommendations (Proposed) 

 
55. The Commissioner is requested to:  

I. Approve the capital programme and authorise the Joint Chief Finance Officer 
(Treasurer) to undertake the appropriate financing. 

Council Tax 2020/21 £m £m

Total Revenue Expenditure 299.502

Add: Appropriations to/(from) Reserves 8.200

Budget Requirement 307.702

Less:

Home Office Core Grant 235.347

Special Pension Grant 3.423

Ring-fenced Uplift Grant 5.175

Localised Council Tax Support Grant 6.867

Council Tax Freeze Grant 11/12 0.912

Council Tax Freeze Grant 14/15 0.389 252.113

Balance to be raised locally 55.589

Less: Estimated net surplus on collection funds 0.938

Council Tax Requirement 54.651

Page 25



 

 10 

II. Approve the revenue budget. 

III. Agree the review of the reserves policy. 

IV. Note the recommendations of the Joint Chief Finance Officer (Treasurer) in 
respect of the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of reserves.  

 
56. Note the Council Tax Base of 398,916 for the year 2020/21 as notified by the billing 

authorities within Tyne and Wear and Northumberland (item T in the formula in 
Section 42B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended).  

 
57. Approve the following amounts for the year 2020/21 in accordance with Sections 

42A, 42B and 45 to 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended: 
  

(a) £321.465m   Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Police and Crime Commissioner estimates for 
the items set out in Section 42A (2) (a) to (d) of 
the Act. 

(b) £266.814m   Being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Police and Crime Commissioner estimates for 
the items set out in Section 42A (3) (a) to (b) 
adjusted for the item set out in S42A (10) of the 
Act. 

(c) £54.651m   Being the amount by which the aggregate at (a)  
above exceeds the aggregate at (b) above,  
calculated by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner in accordance with Section 42A  
(4) of the Act, as it's Council Tax Requirement  
for the year (item R in the formula is Section 42B 
of the Act). 

(d) £137.00   Being the amount at (c) above (item R) divided 
by the amount noted in Recommendation 2 
above (item T), calculated by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner in accordance with Section 
42B (1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year. 

(e) Valuation bands 

        
  A £91.33 Being the amounts given by multiplying the 

amount of (d) above by the number which, in the 
proportion set out in Section 5 (1) of the Act, is 
applicable to dwellings listed in a particular 
valuation band divided by the number which in 
that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in 
valuation band D, calculated by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner in accordance with Section 
47 (1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year in respect of the 
categories of dwelling listed in different valuation 
bands. 

  B £106.56 

  C £121.78 

  D £137.00 

  E £167.44 

  F £197.89 

  G £228.33 

  H £274.00 

 

Page 26



 

 11 

58. Resolve that under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act, the 
Commissioner’s relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2020/21 is not excessive in 
accordance with the principles determined under Section 52ZC (1) of the Act for 
2020/21.  

 
59. Resolve that in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992, as amended, the billing authorities within the area of this authority be issued 
with precepts in the amount of £54,651,467 for the financial year beginning 1 April 
2020, the amount of the retrospective precepts to be issued to each billing authority’s 
area in accordance with the Sections 42A, 42B and 45 to 48 of the 1992 Act, as 
amended.  

 
60. Accept the recommendation of the Joint Chief Finance Officer (Treasurer) for the 

method of calculating MRP for 2020/21 as set out in the Annual MRP statement at 
Annex A to this report. 

 

  

Page 27



 

 12 

 
          

ANNEX A 
 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Northumbria Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
Statement 2020/21 
 
The MRP charge for 2020/21 for capital expenditure incurred before 01 April 2008 (prior to 
the new regulations) or which has subsequently been financed by supported borrowing will 
be based on the previous regulatory method of Capital Financing Requirement at a minimum 
of 4% of the opening balance less prescribed adjustments. 
 
For all unsupported borrowing, exercised under the Prudential Code, the MRP Policy is 
based on the Asset Life Method.  The minimum revenue provision will be at equal annual 
instalments over the life of the asset.  The first charge will not be made until the year after 
the asset becomes operational. 
 
Capital receipts of £23.310m are expected to be available (£15.556m brought forward and 
£7.754m received 20/21-21/22) over the period of the MTFS.  The receipts will be used to 
finance capital expenditure over the medium term period and reduce the overall capital 
financing requirement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 28



 

 13 

ANNEX B 
 
NORTHUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 
FINANCIAL RISK ANALYSIS TO THE 2020/21 BUDGET  
 
Budget Risks 

 1 year settlement. 

 CSR 2020. 

 Pension Grant. 

 Uplift Funding.  
 
General Balances  

 
The risk is that the General Reserve balance is not sufficient. This is mitigated by:  

 The General Reserve will be kept at a minimum of 2% of revenue expenditure. 

 Strong financial controls have resulted in a consistent trend of the revenue outturn 
being delivered within budget in recent years.  

 
Pay Increases  
 
The risk is that pay increases may exceed the levels provided for within the budget. 
Estimates for future pay awards have been fully included.  

 
Price Increases  
 
The risk is that price increases may exceed the levels provided for within the budget. This is 
mitigated by applying inflation on an individual basis to provide for contractual commitments 
and premises related expenditure. All other inflation will be managed within existing budgets 
reflecting the current economic climate. The risk that prices may rise is mitigated by budget 
monitoring arrangements and the Force's current approach to efficiency in challenging and 
managing spend pressures.  

 
Capital Financing  
 
The risk is that Capital Financing Charges will be greater than budgeted. This is mitigated 
by:  

 Revenue implications are considered as part of the capital planning process and 
taken in to account in the MTFS. 

 Advice is taken from the Commissioner’s external treasury management advisers 
Link Asset Services (LAS) in relation to revenue estimates for borrowing and 
investment interest. 

 The principal repayment in respect of debt is the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP), calculated on an asset by asset basis as part of the capital planning process. 
Any change in interest rates will not have an effect as 100% of debt is at fixed rates 
and any refinancing of existing debt will only take place if it will lead to a long term 
saving in interest charges.  

 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

 14 

Financial Planning  
 
The risk is that a major liability or commitment is currently known but has not been taken into 
account in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s financial planning. This is mitigated by:  

 The Medium Term Financial Strategy includes an assessment of spending 
pressures, to be assessed for inclusion in the Commissioner’s budget, identified by 
the Chief Constable by reference amongst other sources to the Local Policing Plan. 

 In addition, regular liaison by senior officers of the Force and the Commissioner’s 
Office help to strengthen and coordinate the financial planning of the Commissioner. 

 
Savings  
 
Budget savings of £3.700m have been included in the revenue budget for 2020/21. The risk 
is that the budget savings will not be delivered. This is mitigated by:  

 The strong record of delivering the budget within targets. 

 Robust monitoring process for budget management throughout the year. 

 Adequacy of the General Reserve and the overall reserves policy.  
 
Loss of Deposit  
 
The risk is that funds deposited by the Commissioner are lost due to the collapse of the 
financial institution with whom the deposit is placed. The risk is limited by the controls in the 
Treasury Management Strategy which focuses on control of deposits rather than returns. 
The potential impact is limited by the strategy of a diverse portfolio with top rated institutions 
which are either part nationalised or have credit guarantees. 
 
Interest Rates on Deposits  
 
The risk is that interest rates will be lower than expected and prudent assumptions on likely 
interest rates for 2020/21 have been incorporated into the budget. Advice has been taken 
from the Commissioner’s external treasury management advisers Link Asset Services (LAS) 
on appropriate budget rates for borrowing and investment interest. 

 
Budgetary Control  
 
The risk is that the budget will overspend. This is mitigated by:  

 Monthly budget monitoring in place. 

 Quarterly monitoring reports to the Commissioner. 
 
Council Tax  
 
The risk following the localisation of Council Tax support is that collection rates could be 
affected which would impact on billing authorities’ collection fund balances and any 
surpluses payable to the Commissioner. To mitigate this risk, local billing authorities have 
factored in prudent collection rates.  

 
Capital Programme Implications  
 
The risk is that the capital programme may be understated, funding will not be available as 
planned or that over spending may occur. This is mitigated by:  

Page 30



 

 15 

 Regular review of Estates Strategy and the decision to focus on key priority schemes 
only; together with quarterly updates of progress will provide assurance in the 
accuracy of forecasts. 

 Quarterly capital monitoring reports to the Commissioner. 
 
Risk Management  
 
The risk is that all risks have not been identified when the budget has been set and that 
major financial consequences may result. This is mitigated by: 

 Risk management arrangements. 

 Comprehensive self and external insurance arrangements in place. 

 Adequacy of the insurance reserve. 

 Adequacy of the general balances and the overall reserves policy. 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Proposed Precept for 2020/21
	Item 03 - Proposed Precept 2020-21
	Item 03 - Appendix


